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1. Eligibility

1.1. Who can apply?

Applications are open to schools, colleges, universities, local authorities, voluntary, community or social enterprise (VCSE) organisations or other profit or non-profit organisations. However, proposals must be provided on a “not for profit” basis and must be designed to work within or in partnership with school(s) and/or college(s) in England.

The target age range is from 5 to 16 year old students, so does not include provision within nurseries or children centres.

Funding is only available for projects working within or in partnership with school(s) and/or college(s) in England.
A full specification, application form and further guidance can be found on Contracts Finder.  


1.2. How do I apply?
A full specification, application form and further guidance can be found on Contracts Finder.  
1.3. How do I know if I meeting the criteria set out in the specification?
In order to maintain the fairness and integrity of the process we are not able to offer additional tips or meetings to discuss the specification or any other aspects of the grant programme.  We recommend reviewing the specification and ITT letter declaration form to check that you meet the criteria listed on this form.  
1.4. What do you mean by ‘non-for profit’?

Proposals will need to demonstrate that the product that is being provided is offered at cost price with no element of profit.   

2. Capital expenditure
2.1. Can the grant be used for capital funding?

The grant cannot be used for capital spend. Capital expenditure is defined here as expenditure incurred on the acquisition of a tangible, productive asset, whose minimum value exceeds £2,500 including VAT and which will give continuous service for more than 12 months. The asset purchased is expected to provide service beyond the financial year in which it was acquired. 
3. Matched funding

3.1. Is it mandatory to include an element of matched funding in the application?

Matched funding is not essential but we would like to see a willingness to contribute and any measure that increases the value for money of our investment will add value to your application. We welcome different approaches to match-funding, both financial and in-kind contributions (for example time resource expressed in staff costs). 
We will consider the value for money of each proposal, which will also take into account other funding streams.


4. Staffing costs

4.1. Do I need to include staff costs in the application?

Yes, the application form (section six - Questions 5a - 5b) requires you to set out your proposal’s delivery budget (including wages broken down by staff, travel/subsistence and other staff costs).


5. Partners

5.1. What do you mean by consortium working?
We recognise that there is a range of ways for schools to work together.  One model would be for a project to be led by one school but with close involvement of other schools.  However, we would expect proposals to include at least one school that is rated good or outstanding by Ofsted in the design and delivery of the project.   

5.2. Are there any types of partners you would expect to see in the application?
 
We expect all applications to include schools as key partners, and would welcome partnerships with other organisations as well. Where an application has a list of partners we would like details about how each of the partners will contribute to the success of the scheme.


6. Multiple applications

6.1. Is it permissible to submit more than one application?

The lead organisation can only submit one application as we would like to see a diverse spread across a range of different organisations, areas and approaches. However, a lead organisation can be named in other proposals as a consortium member.

7. Target age group

7.1. What is the target age group for these grants?

The target age group is 5 – 16.
7.2. What is the age criteria for the proposals?

The criteria require proposals to involve children aged 5-16, so a project for students aged 17-18 would not be eligible for funding.

8. Existing provision

8.1. Can the grant be used to maintain existing provision?

We welcome applications that aim to develop new approaches or expand and robustly evaluate existing approaches.  


8.2. What do you mean by expanding existing provision?

As stated within the specification of requirements document expanding existing provision could be achieved in a number of ways, but we are particularly interested in proposals that aim to: 
a) Increase the number of children aged 5-16 involved in activities and environments that promote character education; and 

b) Develop key character traits, attributes and behaviours in children aged 5-16 that support academic attainment; are valued by employers; and enable children to make a positive contribution to British society.

9. Character traits

9.1. Are proposals expected to meet all of the aims in the specification? Can we just focus on employability, for example? 

We expect applicants to look at the detailed Specification of requirements and develop proposals that meet the requirements as closely as possible.  However, we are seeking to fund a range of approaches and anticipate that some will be more focussed than others. Further details can be found in the Character Education Grant Specification of requirements.
10.  Further character grant funding

10.1. Will there be another application round?

At present we do not plan to extend or repeat the current round of grants. If a new grant round is launched in the future this will be accessible via Contracts Finder.
11.  Application form – stages 1 and 2
11.1 Do both stages 1 and 2 needs to be completed fully prior to application?

All of the information requested in the application form must be provided when you apply to enable your application to be considered. Both stages 1 and 2 need to be completed by the 23 June deadline.
11.2. How will the projects be evaluated?

The Department will provide funding for evaluating the projects and will appoint an independent evaluator.  

12. Exemptions

12.1 Are there any exemptions for community based groups with charitable status?

A full specification, application form and further guidance can be found on Contracts Finder.  


Applications are open to schools, colleges, universities, local authorities,

voluntary, community or social enterprise (VCSE) 
organisations or other profit or non-profit organisations. However, 
proposals must be provided on a “not for profit” basis and must be designed to work within or in partnership with school(s) and/or college(s) in England.

13.  Delivery Period
13.1 Can the delivery be spread over a longer period than the 12 
months? 

The grant is intended to operate for the 2016-17 academic year - all delivery must be completed between September 2016 and July 2017.
14.  Military Ethos
14.1. The guidance says that you would welcome applications that use a military ethos approach to developing character. What do you mean by this?
By military ethos, we mean projects that help instil certain aspects of military ethos, such as leadership, self-discipline and teamwork to help children develop key character traits, attributes and behaviours that support academic attainment; are valued by employers, and enable children to make a positive contribution to British society.
Such projects often use service leavers employed as instructors and mentors.
15.  Activities

15.1. What type of activities could be included in my proposal? 

We do not want to dictate what type of activities we feel you should put in your proposals. However further guidance on drafting your proposal can be found in the Specification of requirements document.  

15.2. What do you mean by working in a consortium with involvement of several schools?  

Please see the Specification of requirements document for more details   about different approaches.
Proposals must be in partnership with school(s) and/or college(s) in 
England. By ‘partnership’ we mean that the provider must (at a minimum) engage with the relevant school (including PRUs and other alternative provision schools) or college where the young person attends to assess whether the proposed activity or provision will help to underpin success in school and work. We would typically 
expect schools and colleges to be named in any bid.


15.3. You say that I have to work in partnership with at least one school rated good or outstanding by Ofsted in the design and delivery of the project; can the proposal be designed so that it supports a number of different schools including my own school?

Yes, as long as one of those schools within the partnership is rated good or outstanding by Ofsted. If you are submitting a bid on behalf of an organisation that is not a school, we would expect you to have worked with a good or outstanding school in designing your project.
16.  Reach
16.1. Have you set a target for the number of young people that you aim to reach and will grants be assessed on a cost per head basis?

We have not specified a target number.  Each application will be assessed based on the Specification of requirements. 
17.  Application form
17.1. The application form is in PDF – how do I enter my details on the form?

The PDF version of the application form has been designed so that the relevant fields can be completed.

17.2. Given the word limit for each section can you please confirm whether it is permitted to cross reference between sections to save repetition?


Yes, but see below.
17.3. The application guidance states that scoring from stage one will not be carried forward to stage two. Does this mean that stage one content will not be re-read at stage two, or is it possible for us to refer back to information contained in our stage one answers as part of stage two answers if we need to?

Please do cross refer to the information you provided in Stage one (Section five) in order to answer the questions at Stage Two (Section Six).

17.4. Where there is a word limit for parts of the application form, can I use acronyms and write it out in full at the end?

Acronyms are fine so long as you explain what the acronym is the first    time you use it. 


17.5. Can we include diagrams and charts in the application form?

The application form does not allow diagrams or charts, however when submitting your additional financial information you can include diagrams or charts in the email attachment.
17.6. Do I have to send paper copies?


No, we will not accept paper copies (hard copies) of your completed application form.  This is an electronic application process.  All documents are available on line at the Contracts Finder website.
  
17.7. How do I email my completed application form?


Do not press the submit button, once you have fully completed your application form, open up your preferred email option and attach the application form (and any supporting documents) to the email in the normal way and send it to the email address provided below and in the Specification of requirements.  You will know when your email has reached the DfE because you will receive an automatic email from the relevant DfE application mailbox. 
17.8. When I try to save my completed application form I keep receiving a pop up box that says ‘this form is in a data collection workflow. To send your data back to the workflow initiator, please click submit to ensure your data will be collected correctly’
Ignore this message and send your completed application form and attachment’s in an email.
17.9. What happens if my attachments are over 24MB?
You will need to ensure that all attachments do not exceed the maximum limit of 24MB as we cannot accept emails that are larger than that. If the total size is larger than 24MB please divide the attachments between a number of emails, clearly specifying your organisation name in the subject line and body of each email.

17.10. How do I submit my financial documents?

You will need to attach all your documents to the email (along with your completed application form).

18.  Feedback

18.1. Following the evaluation of all bids will unsuccessful applicants        receive feedback on their proposals? 

Feedback will not be given following the evaluation of stage 1. Applicants who progress to stage 2 will be able to request feedback once notified of the outcome of their application.
18.2. Can you provide feedback on last year’s winners?

Unfortunately, we are not able to provide feedback on last year’s applications, but a link to last year’s Character Grant details is https://www.gov.uk/government/news/character-education-apply-for-2015-grant-funding.

Further questions 

If you have any further queries about the application process please

email: Charactergrant2016.query@education.gsi.gov.uk 
Final application forms must be sent to:
Charactergrant2016.application@education.gsi.gov.uk
